
PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA 
KALAMAZOO PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

December 11, 2023 5:00 p.m. 
Van Deusen Room, Central Library   

315 S. Rose St. Kalamazoo, MI 49009 
Click here to join the meeting 

or by calling 

+1 917-933-5523

Then enter meeting code: 
523636765# 

Approval of Agenda  

I. ROLL CALL

II. RECOGNITIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

III. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. Minutes of the Meeting of October 16, 2023
B. Minutes of the Meeting of October 23, 2023
C. Minutes of the Meeting of October 30, 2023
D. Minutes of the Meeting of November 7, 2023
E. Minutes of the Meeting of November 13, 2023
F. Minutes of the Meeting of November 20, 2023
G. Minutes of the Meeting of November 30, 2023

H. Personnel Items (acceptance of consent calendar)

V. FINANCIAL REPORT
A. Financial Reports for the Period Ending October 31, 2023

VI. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendations

A. Acceptance of the Audited Financial Statements, FY 2022-2023

B. Mid-Year Close Estimate Budget FY 2023-2024

C. 2024 Non-Resident Fee and Digital Fee

D. Child Safety Policy

E. 2024 Board Meeting Calendar

Reports 

A. Strategic Plan 2024

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS
A. Finance and Budget Committee

B. Personnel Committee

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ODFiZGQ5ODMtZWI5NS00YjNhLTkxZDYtMzNlZWRhMTQxOWUy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2243667844-e654-4247-8a0d-9f830110ffa6%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22da19b681-7659-4b63-88ad-a43ba5f030e4%22%7d
tel:+19179335523,,523636765
http://www.kpl.gov/


C. Fund Development Committee  

D. Director’s Building Advisory Committee 

E. Ad hoc Bylaw Review Committee 

 

 
VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Director’s Report 
B. Board Nominating Committee 
C. Board Development Discussion 

 
IX. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

 
X. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 
  
XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 
Beginning January 1, 2022, The KPL Board of Trustees Meetings will be held in-person to comply 
with the Michigan Open Meetings Act. Safety precautions will be in place to adjust to pandemic 
circumstances. Meetings will continue to be streamed virtually, with attendees having the ability 
to provide public comments in person and online during those points on the agenda. In person 
and online public commenters have a time limit of three minutes.  
 
Online Public Comment Guidelines  
During “Public Comment” online participants will have the opportunity to address the Board and 
will be unmuted. There will be an opportunity to speak at the beginning of the meeting and at the 
end of the meeting. Public commenters are asked to state their name, address, and to keep 
comments to three minutes during each Public Comment period. To provide public comment, 
please use the following tools in the Teams meeting. Use the “Raise Hand” (Press *6 for phone 
audio) to be called upon by the Board Chair, please state your name and address. Use the “Q&A” 
window with your name and public comment and the Board Chair or designee will read it out 
loud. The Board Chair will ask if there are any remaining participants who would like to address 
the Board before continuing. 

 



IV. A. 

14 
 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: October 16, 2023 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Community Room, Eastwood Branch 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Roth called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Emily Greenman Wright, Denise Miller, 
Linda Mah 

 
Absent: Lisa Godfrey 

 
II. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   

No persons addressed the board. 

III. BOARD DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP 
Dr. Karika Parker of Onyx Executive Leadership Consulting led the Board through the 
development of a timeline for the Request for Proposal for an executive search firm and 
director search. 
 

IV. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 
Trustees present thanked Dr. Parker for the workshop. 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objection, President Roth adjourned the meeting at 8:15 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   

                                                                          Secretary 



IV. B. 

15 
 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: October 23, 2023 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Van Deusen Room, Central Library 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Roth called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Lisa Godfrey, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Emily Greenman Wright, 
Linda Mah 

 
Absent: Denise Miller 

 
II. RECOGNITIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
III. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  

There were no persons who addressed the board.  

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Minutes of the Meeting of September 18, 2023 
B. Minutes of the Meeting of September 25, 2023 
C. Personnel Items: Trustee Williams acknowledged employee new hires, employee 

separations, and employee anniversaries within the organization. 

MOTION: E. GREENMAN WRIGHT MOVED AND K. JOCK SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO 
ACCEPT THE CONSENT CALENDARS FOR THE MONTH OF AUGUST ENDING SEPTEMBER 25, 
2023. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; E. 
Greenman Wright – yes.   

 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
 

V. FINANCIAL REPORT 
A. Financial Reports for the Month Ending September 30, 2023 
 
Recommendation: Interim Director Terry New recommended the Board accept the Financial 
Reports for the month ending September 30, 2023. 
 



IV. B. 

16 
 

MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND J. WILLIAMS SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO ACCEPT THE 
FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE MONTH ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023. 
 
Discussion: Nnamdi Dike, Head of Budget and Finance, gave a summary highlighting the 
August Financial Reports. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; E. 
Greenman Wright – yes.   
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 
 

VI. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Reports 

 
A. Presentation of Audited Financial Statements – Gabridge & Company 

 
Matt Holland, an auditor, from Gabridge & Company, gave a presentation on the audit 
results that were conducted on the Kalamazoo Public Library’s financials. Auditor Holland 
also informed the board that the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has 
created a new standard that is mandatory for all government entities to follow.  
 

B. Library Statistics Dashboard – Jim Clarey/ILS Specialist 
 
Integrated Library Systems Specialist Jim Clarey gave a presentation to the Board about the 
Library Statistics Dashboard.  In this presentation he demonstrated how the public as well as 
patrons can use the Library Statistics Dashboard.  

 
 

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
A. Finance and Budget Committee – Trustee Godfrey stated the committee went over the 

draft audit with Finance and Budget Department Head Nnamdi Dike. The committee 
also discussed the compensation range for a new library director.  
 

B. Personnel Committee – Trustee Williams stated the committee reviewed the resolution 
procedure, and informed the board that a 360 evaluation process for the director 
should be implemented for the director. 
 

C. Fund Development Committee – No meeting. 
 

D. Director’s Building Advisory Committee –No meeting. 
  

E. Ad hoc Bylaw Review Committee – No meeting. 
 

 
VIII. OTHER BUSINESS 



IV. B. 

17 
 

 
A. Director’s Report 
Interim Director New reported on the following topics: 
 

• Interim Director New reported that on October 14th Trustee Jock received the Daughters of the 

American Revolution Literacy Award on behalf of the library. 

 

• Interim Director New stated that the library received a generous donation of $32,000 from 

Friends of Kalamazoo Public Library. Portions of this donation will be used to sponsor the Ready 

to Read/Great Grown-Up Spelling Bee and a youth writing contest and the remaining is 

undesignated.   

 

• Banned Books Week, October 1-7, was a HUGE success! Hundreds of people attended one or all 

of the three events highlighted that week. The events included Black Out Poetry on October 2 at 

the Eastwood Branch, Banned Books Week Panel on October 3 at the Oshtemo Branch, and the 

Read Out and Rock Out featuring Bitch and Crys Matthews on October 6 at the Old Dog Tavern. 

The concert was an amazing event with over 200 people listening to nine staff and community 

members read from banned or challenged books and watching fabulous performances from two 

amazing talents! 

 

• The Michigan Library Association Annual Conference was a great success and incredible event.  

 

• The Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Space Needs Study will be released on November 1st.  

 
B. Executive Search Committee  

 

• Trustee Williams reported that the committee worked on and completed creating a document 
of desired characteristics and qualifications for a new director. This committee work was led by 
Dr. Karika Parker. Once a firm is selected and hired, the firm will be given this document to 
create a formal job description for the director’s position.   
 
MOTION: C. ROTH MOVED AND E. GREENMAN WRIGHT SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO APPROVE 
THE CREATION OF THE EXECUTIVE SEARCH COMMITTEE FOR THE RFP. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah  – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; E. 
Greenman Wright – yes.   
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 

 
 

IX. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 
There were no persons who addressed the board.  
 

X. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 



IV. B. 

18 
 

• L. Godfrey encourage the Board of Trustees to attend the Great Grown-Up Spelling 

Bee. 

• K. Jock stated that the Michigan Library Association conference reception was lovely 
and wonderful to attend. Trustee Jock congratulated all the staff who participated in 
assisting the reception for their hard work. 

• E. Greenman Wright stated that she is grateful for the work that the Kalamazoo 

Public Library staff does. Trustee Greenman Wright also stated that she is 

appreciative of our pivot towards more and refined data collection, and the 

incredible work being done around mental health and young families struggling with 

mental health.  

 

• L. Mah thanked Community Engagement Department Head Kevin King and the staff 

he coordinated with for their amazing work on the Michigan Library Association 

conference reception. Trustee Mah informed the board that the Great Grown-Up 

Spelling Bee will be taking place on November 15th, and the event is for fundraising. 

Trustee Mah encouraged the board to donate at the event if they are able.  

 

• J. Williams stated it was great to see the librarians at the Michigan Library 

Association conference. 

 

• President Roth echoed the same sentiments that the Michigan Library Association 

conference was a great event. President Roth also stated that everyone should be 

proud of the work across the library district in all of the branches.  

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objection, President Roth adjourned the meeting at 6:20 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   

                                                                          Secretary 



IV. C. 

19 
 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: October 30, 2023 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Van Deusen Room, Central Library 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Roth called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Lisa Godfrey, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Emily Greenman Wright, 
Linda Mah, Denise Miller 

 
Absent: None 

 
II. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  

There were no persons who addressed the board.  

III. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Reports 

 
A. Executive Search Firm  

Trustee Miller gave a report on the work the Executive Search Firm Committee has 
completed. The committee has decided that the Ray and Associates firm met the criteria set 
by the Executive Search Firm Committee. Trustee Miller recommended to the board to 
schedule an interview with Ray and Associates.  
 
MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND J. WILLIAMS SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO INTERVIEW 
RAY AND ASSOCIATES FIRM. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; E. 
Greenman Wright – yes; D. Miller – yes.    
 
MOTION CARRIED 7-0 
 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Staff and Board Breakfast Event 



IV. C. 

20 
 

The board discussed logistics of the Staff and Board Breakfast Event. It has been decided 
that the Board will attend Staff Day, on December 7th, and meet with staff during the 
scheduled breakfast.  

 
 
 

V. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 
There were no persons who addressed the board.  
 

VI. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 

• L. Godfrey no comment 

 

• E. Greenman Wright no comment 

 

• D. Miller thanked the Executive Search Firm Committee for their work. 

 

• J. Williams also expressed thanks to the Executive Search Firm Committee for their 

work. 

 

• L. Mah echoed thanks to the Executive Search Firm Committee for their work. 

• K. Jock echoed thanks to the Executive Search Firm Committee for their work. 

• President Roth echoed thanks to the Executive Search Firm Committee for their 

work also. 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objection, President Roth adjourned the meeting at 6:16 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   

                                                                          Secretary 



IV. D. 

21 
 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: November 7, 2023 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Van Deusen Room, Central Library 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Roth called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Emily Greenman Wright, Lisa Godfrey, 
Linda Mah 

 
Absent: Denise Miller 

 
II. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   

No persons addressed the board 

III. INTERVIEW WITH RAY & ASSOCIATES 
The Trustees conducted an interview with Kathy Schoenfelder, Vice President of Ray & 
Associates.  
  

IV. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
The Executive Search Committee recommended that the board hire Ray & Associates to be 
the firm for the director search. 
 
MOTION: L. GODFREY MOVED AND E. GREENMAN WRIGHT SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO 
HIRE RAY & ASSOCIATES FOR THE DIRECTOR SEARCH. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah  – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; 
E. Greenman Wright – yes.   
 
MOTION CARRIED 6-0 

 
V. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 

• K. Jock gave no comment.  

• L. Godfrey gave no comment.  

• J. Williams gave no comment. 



IV. D. 

22 
 

 

• E. Greenman Wright gave no comment. 

• L. Mah gave no comment. 

• President Roth gave no comment.  

 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 

Hearing no objection, President Roth adjourned the meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   

                                                                          Secretary 



IV. E. 

23 
 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: November 13, 2023 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Van Deusen Room, Central Library 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Roth called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Lisa Godfrey, Linda Mah 

 
Absent: Emily Greenman Wright, Denise Miller 

 
II. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   

No persons addressed the board 

III. DIRECTOR SEARCH – RAY & ASSOCIATES 
Kathy Schoenfelder, Vice President of Ray & Associates, led the board in discussion and 
options on the logistics of hiring a director for the Kalamazoo Public Library. The board 
reviewed the options of the director search process provided by Vice President 
Schoenfelder and select options that agreed upon to be the best suited for community and 
the Kalamazoo Public Library.  
 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS 
Trustees discussed canceling the board meeting on Monday, November 27th due to another 
scheduled board meeting occurring on Thursday, November 30th.  
 
MOTION: K. JOCK MOVED AND L. MAH SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO CANCEL THE BOARD 
MEETING ON MONDAY, NOVEMBER 27TH. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – yes; L. Mah – yes; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes;  

 
MOTION CARRIED 5-0 
 
 

V. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 

• L. Godfrey gave no comment. 

• K. Jock gave no comment. 



IV. E. 

24 
 

 

• L. Mah gave no comment. 

 

• J. Williams gave no comment. 

 

• President Roth stated that she is excited to start this process with Ray & Associates 

to find an executive director.   

 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objection, President Roth adjourned the meeting at 6:36 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   

                                                                          Secretary 



IV. F. 

25 
 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: November 20, 2023 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Board Room, Central Library 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Roth called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Emily Greenman Wright, Denise Miller, Lisa 
Godfrey, Linda Mah 

 
Absent:  

 
II. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   

No persons addressed the board. 

III. BOARD DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP 
Dr. Karika Parker of Onyx Executive Leadership Consulting led the Board through the 
development of the interview questions for the director search. 
 

IV. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 
Trustees present thanked Dr. Parker for the workshop. 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objection, President Roth adjourned the meeting at 8:00 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   

                                                                          Secretary 



IV. G. 

26 
 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library 
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Date: November 30, 2023 

Time:  5:00 p.m. 
Location: Board Room, Central Library 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
President Roth called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL: 
The agenda was approved.  
                                                                    

I. ROLL CALL 
Present: Jannie Williams, Christy Roth, Kori Jock, Emily Greenman Wright, Denise Miller, Lisa 
Godfrey, Linda Mah 

 
Absent:  

 
II. PERSONS REQUESTING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   

No persons addressed the board. 

III. DIRECTOR SEARCH PROCESS DISCUSSION: KATHY SCHOENFELDER FROM RAY & 
ASSOCIATES 
 
Kathy Schoenfelder, Vice President of Ray & Associates, led the board in discussion on 
reviewing the Executive Director job description, the job application process, and job 
posting materials such as flyers.  
 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS  

A. Amendment to Executive Leadership Consulting Agreement 
President Roth brought forth a motion to amendment to Executive Leadership 
Consulting Agreement (Original Contract) due to additional services provided by Dr. 
Karika Parker. 
 
MOTION: C. ROTH MOVED AND J. WILLIAMS SUPPORTED THE MOTION TO AMEND THE 
EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP CONSULTING AGREEMENT. 
 
Roll Call Vote: J. Williams – yes; L. Godfrey – no; L. Mah – no; K. Jock – yes; C. Roth – yes; 
E. Greenman Wright – yes; D. Miller – yes.    
 
MOTION CARRIED 5-2 
 



IV. G. 

27 
 

 

V. COMMENTS BY TRUSTEES 

• J. Williams stated she thought the new prism was phenomenal. 

• D. Miller stated she thought the Trustees did great work during the meeting and is 

excited to see applicants apply for the position. 

• L. Godfrey gave no comment. 

• E. Greenman Wright gave no comment. 

• K. Jock gave no comment. 

• L. Mah gave no comment. 

• President Roth thanked the Trustees for the work they accomplished in the 

meeting.   

 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
Hearing no objection, President Roth adjourned the meeting at 7:55 p.m. 
 

 

X__________________________ 

                                                                                    Jannie Williams   

                                                                          Secretary 



 
 

V. A.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMO 

 

 

TO: Library Trustees FROM: Terry New, Interim 
Library Director 

    
RE: Financial Reports for the Month 

Ending October 31, 2023 
DATE: December 11, 

2023 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

 

I recommend the Board accept the Financial Reports for the month ending October 31, 2023. 

 

 

Executive Summary: 

 

Notes to the reports are included for your information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 Lisa Godfrey, Treasurer 
 



 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library 

Financial Reports for October 2023 
 

 

 
Governmental Pooled Funds, Sources and Uses and Combined Balance Sheet 

 

The Library’s Governmental Pooled Funds totaled $13,582,697 at the end of October. Sources of funds 

totaled $81,418 during the month, highlighted by the receipt of interest earnings on short‐term library 

investments ($37,308) and local support from the Friends of KPL ($30,000). Uses of funds totaled 

$1,126,085 in October, led by Salaries & Wages, Other Expenditures, and Prepaid Expenditures. 

Combined Balance sheet activity was normal for the month. 

 

Revenue, Expenditures ‐‐ General Operating Fund 

 

The library recognized $57,569 of General Fund revenue during October, led by interest income on 

short‐term investments. General Fund expenditures during the month totaled $1,013,901. Cumulative 

General Fund expenditures through October have totaled $3,894,299, or 27% of the preliminary budget 

for the fiscal year. 

 

Capital Improvement Plan 

 

Capital Improvement Plan activity for October consisted of $38,250 of expenditures led by spending for 

Library Access Controls (P#827A, totaling $35,683). Major CIP encumbrances outstanding at the end of 

October include building and infrastructure projects at Central Library and Oshtemo branch (various CIP 

projects totaling $172,112). 

 

Special Revenue Fund 

 

Financial activity in the Special Revenue Fund during October included the receipt of $27,805 of 

donations, highlighted by a substantial gift from Friends of KPL ($25,000 of the amount noted above 

credited to the SRF). Expenditures recognized by the SRF totaled $62,929 during the month, led by the 

purchase of wireless service for hotspots under the Digital Access for All project ($37,320), and 

programming expenditures under the Stryker Johnston Grant for ONEplace operations ($24,227). 

 

Endowment Fund 

 

Economic conditions were mixed during October, with the Bureau of Labor Statistics reporting the 

addition of 150,000 jobs during the month, short of market expectations, and BLS revising the 

September jobs report to reduce employment gains by 39,000. BLS also reported the Consumer Price 

Index for the twelve‐month period through October stood at 3.2%, the lowest in two years. The market 

value of the Library’s Endowment Fund at the end of October fell to $5,819,460, a decrease in value of 

$79,719 compared to fund value at the end of the previous month. A copy of page 1 of the monthly 

statement from the Library’s Charles Schwab One account is attached at the end of this internal financial 

report. 



BEGINNING CASH BALANCE * 14,627,364$      
* Including short‐term investments

SOURCES OF CASH:
 Property Tax Receipts 240$  

 IFT/CFT, PILOT, Other Tax Receipts 8,684$                

 State Aid/Renaissance Zone Reimbursement ‐$  

 USF Refunds/Law Library Contract/District Ct. Penal Fines ‐$  

 Interest Income 37,308$             

 Library Fines & Fees 2,381$                

 Other Sources: Gifts, Grants, & Reimbursements 5,000$                

 Other (CIP and SRF Revenue, etc.) 27,805$             

   TOTAL SOURCES OF CASH 81,418$                 

USES OF CASH:
 Salaries & Wages (454,033)$          

 Benefits (114,845)$          

 Materials (101,143)$          

 Operating Expenditures (25,543)$            

 Facilities (56,937)$            

 Technical Services (26,371)$            

 Purchased Services (55,281)$            

 Other (138,257)$          

 Capital Expenditures (38,250)$            

 Prepaid Expenditures (115,426)$          

   TOTAL USES OF CASH (1,126,085)$          

ENDING CASH 13,582,697$      

POOLED CASH ACCOUNTS:
Petty Cash 250$  

Flagstar Bank General Checking 372,938$           

First National NOW & ACH Transfer Accounts 147,722$           

Consumers Credit Union ‐ Share Savings/Navia Admin 29,276$             

Consumers Credit Union ‐ General Checking 34,837$             

Midwest Business Exchange Account/Paypal 34,117$             

POOLED CASH ACCOUNTS 619,140$               

POOLED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS:

Flagstar Bank Premier Savings, MM & CD Accts 5,000,946$        

First National Bank ICS Savings, MM & CDs 5,977,587$        

Consumers Credit Union MM Acct & CD Accts 1,985,023$        

POOLED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS 12,963,556$         

TOTAL CASH AND POOLED INVESTMENTS 13,582,697$      

Kalamazoo Public Library
Sources and Uses of Funds

Governmental Pooled Funds Only
For the month ending October 31, 2023

October



Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund

Month of October 2023

Activity Encumbrances PEB YTD Budget Left % Complete

Month of October

1 - General Fund

Revenue

$240 $0 $13,740,379 $2,217 $13,738,162  0.0%          Property Taxes

$8,684 $0 $119,100 $16,886 $102,214  14.2%          Other Taxes

$2,381 $0 $19,000 $7,737 $11,263  40.7%          Fines and Fees

$0 $0 $148,000 $0 $148,000  0.0%          District Court Penal Fines

$5,000 $0 $173,000 $189,000 ($16,000)  109.2%          Local Support

$37,308 $0 $150,000 $140,431 $9,569  93.6%          Interest Income

$0 $0 $272,812 $2,740 $270,072  1.0%          State Aid and Reimbursements

$3,956 $0 $127,796 $17,428 $110,368  13.6%          Other

$57,569 $0 $14,750,087 $376,439 $14,373,648  2.6%Total Revenue

Expenditures

     Salaries

$61,201 $0 $846,645 $226,600 $620,045  26.8%          Administrator Salaries

$134,087 $0 $1,784,897 $526,019 $1,258,878  29.5%          Librarian Salaries

$76,310 $0 $1,052,715 $305,899 $746,816  29.1%          Supervisory Technical Salaries

$130,328 $0 $1,691,601 $518,603 $1,172,998  30.7%          Library Assistant Salaries

$18,541 $0 $295,000 $71,000 $224,000  24.1%          Interns

$48,093 $0 $741,960 $199,946 $542,014  26.9%          Hourly Staff

$9,641 $0 $89,482 $33,395 $56,087  37.3%          Substitute Salaries

$0 $0 ($35,000) $0 ($35,000)  0.0%          Vacancy Credit

$478,202 $0 $6,467,300 $1,881,462 $4,585,838  29.1%     Total

     Benefits

$89,089 $0 $1,068,015 $342,009 $726,006  32.0%          Employee Insurance

$53,045 $0 $1,043,630 $205,980 $837,650  19.7%          Retirement

$35,079 $0 $493,934 $137,781 $356,153  27.9%          Employer FICA-Medicare

$4,408 $0 $102,044 $15,941 $86,103  15.6%          Other Benefits

$181,621 $0 $2,707,623 $701,711 $2,005,912  25.9%     Total

     Materials

$40,723 $0 $596,550 $127,200 $469,350  21.3%          Adult Books

$15,728 $0 $147,000 $47,371 $99,629  32.2%          Juvenile Books

$550 $0 $52,860 $4,091 $48,769  7.7%          Periodicals

$26,982 $0 $432,000 $90,712 $341,288  21.0%          Audio-Visual Material

$27,526 $0 $216,430 $50,927 $165,503  23.5%          Digital Materials

$1,370 $0 $35,000 $4,965 $30,035  14.2%          Library of Things

$112,879 $0 $1,479,840 $325,267 $1,154,573  22.0%     Total

     Facilities

$1,169 $0 $86,000 $2,663 $83,337  3.1%          Fuel

$16,558 $0 $191,390 $62,276 $129,114  32.5%          Electricity

$530 $0 $13,600 $6,165 $7,435  45.3%          Water

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 1 of 3



Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund

Month of October 2023

Activity Encumbrances PEB YTD Budget Left % Complete

Month of October

$8,803 $0 $90,000 $27,880 $62,120  31.0%          Custodial Supplies

$10,794 ($9,710) $54,500 $13,163 $41,337  24.2%          Grounds Maintenance

$351 $0 $8,500 $1,658 $6,842  19.5%          Vehicle Maintenance

$10,182 ($5,464) $139,700 $32,029 $107,671  22.9%          Building Repair

$11,328 $0 $133,700 $52,972 $80,728  39.6%          Building Operations

$59,715 ($15,174) $717,390 $198,806 $518,584  27.7%     Total

     Operating Expenses

$15,061 ($1,129) $143,150 $34,377 $108,773  24.0%          Supplies

$7,016 $0 $103,355 $20,907 $82,448  20.2%          Misc. Operating Expenses

$2,254 $0 $36,500 $12,665 $23,835  34.7%          Postage & Freight

$3,606 $0 $46,000 $16,136 $29,864  35.1%          Rent

$758 ($758) $47,000 $2,404 $44,596  5.1%          Processing Supplies

$28,695 ($1,887) $376,005 $86,488 $289,517  23.0%     Total

     Technical Services

$0 $0 $16,000 $0 $16,000  0.0%          F&E Repair & Maintenance

$15,393 $0 $400,443 $222,764 $177,679  55.6%          Software as Service

$15,511 $0 $189,065 $42,685 $146,380  22.6%          Software Licensing & Maint.

$7,611 $0 $155,040 $31,365 $123,675  20.2%          Telecommunications

$1,657 $0 $91,809 $41,063 $50,746  44.7%          Cataloging & Processing

$40,172 $0 $852,357 $337,877 $514,480  39.6%     Total

     Purchased Services

$22,847 $0 $446,052 $100,034 $346,018  22.4%          Security

$2,373 $0 $111,216 $9,569 $101,647  8.6%          Insurance

$2,525 $0 $50,000 $3,550 $46,450  7.1%          Legal Services

$4,908 $0 $128,600 $38,588 $90,012  30.0%          Printing Services

$2,300 $0 $40,000 $5,280 $34,720  13.2%          Advertising

$21,317 $0 $343,209 $73,285 $269,925  21.4%          Contracted Services

$56,271 $0 $1,119,077 $230,305 $888,772  20.6%     Total

     Other Expenditures

$47,145 $0 $427,100 $100,425 $326,675  23.5%          Programming

$0 $0 $50,000 $12,334 $37,666  24.7%          Tax Charge Backs

$6,830 $0 $68,260 $11,839 $56,421  17.3%          Staff Development

$2,315 $0 $122,410 $7,692 $114,718  6.3%          Travel & Conference

$55 $0 $12,000 $92 $11,908  0.8%          Board Expenses

$56,346 $0 $679,770 $132,382 $547,388  19.5%     Total

$1,013,901 ($17,062) $14,399,362 $3,894,299 $10,505,063  27.0%Total

Transfers

     Transfers In

          Transfers from other funds $0 $0 ($152,984) $0 ($152,984)  0.0%

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 2 of 3



Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund

Month of October 2023

Activity Encumbrances PEB YTD Budget Left % Complete

Month of October

$0 $0 ($152,984) $0 ($152,984)  0.0%     Total Transfers In

     Transfers Out

          Transfers to other funds $0 $0 $528,728 $0 $528,728  0.0%

$0 $0 $528,728 $0 $528,728  0.0%     Total

$0 $0 $375,744 $0 $375,744  0.0%Total

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 3 of 3



Monthly 

Activity

Monthly 

Encumbrances
Activity YTD

Carryover 

Balance

Preliminary 

Estimate 

Budget

Balance 

Remaining

3 ‐ Capital Improvement Plan Fund

REVENUE

          Other Local Gifts & Grants

               800 ‐ Capital Improvement Plan ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       140,000$              140,000$               

               830 ‐ Computer & Technology Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               884 ‐ Digital Lab (Hub) Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

     Total Revenue ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       140,000$              140,000$               

          State Aid & Reimbursements

               800 ‐ Share of Local Community Stabilization Fund ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       471,272$              471,272$               

Total Revenue & State Aid ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       611,272$              611,272$               

EXPENDITURES

     Furnishings

               810 ‐ Furnishings Reserve ‐$                         ‐$                        121,202$              50,000$                171,202$               

          Total Furnishings Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         121,202$              50,000$                198,772$               

          Central Library

               803 ‐ Central Building Furnishings ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        15,820$                ‐$                       15,820$                 

               812 ‐ Office Furnishings ‐ KPL Reorganization ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        3,264$                   ‐$                       3,264$                   

               813 ‐ Display/Public ‐ Central ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        68,277$                ‐$                       68,277$                 

               818 ‐ Circulation Room Furnishings ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               861 ‐ IT Office Furnishings ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               884F ‐ Digital Lab Furnishings ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        4,500$                   ‐$                       4,500$                   

               889 ‐ Children's Room Table/Chairs ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        6,809$                   ‐$                       6,809$                   

               892 ‐ Local History Room Furniture ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        1,000$                   ‐$                       1,000$                   

               892F ‐ Local History Digitization ‐ FFE ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        1,371$                   ‐$                       1,371$                   

          Total Central Library ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        101,041$              ‐$                       101,041$               

          Branch Libraries

               815 ‐ Workspaces & Public Areas ‐ Oshtemo ‐$                      ‐$                         3,572$                   30,968$                ‐$                       27,396$                 

               815CF ‐ Oshtemo Courtyard Furniture ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        10,000$                ‐$                       10,000$                 

               817 ‐ Workspaces & Public Areas ‐ WSQ ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        27,945$                ‐$                       27,945$                 

               881 ‐ Eastwood/Powell ‐ Furniture ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        42,535$                ‐$                       42,535$                 

          Total Branch Libraries ‐$                      ‐$                         3,572$                   111,448$              ‐$                       107,876$               

          System‐Wide Projects

               811F ‐ Carpet Cleaning Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        3,212$                   ‐$                       3,212$                   

               814 ‐ Desks & Chairs ‐ Multiple Departments ‐$                      ‐$                         2,022$                   4,875$                   ‐$                       2,853$                   

               819 ‐ Materials Lending Machine Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        10,000$                ‐$                       10,000$                 

               898F ‐ Library of Things ‐‐ Furniture & Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        7,491$                   ‐$                       7,491$                   

          Total System‐Wide Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         2,022$                   25,578$                ‐$                       23,556$                 

     Total Furniture & Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         5,594$                   359,269$              50,000$                431,245$               

     Building Alterations

               820 ‐ Building Alterations Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        324,516$              550,000$              874,516$               

          Total Building Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        324,516$              550,000$              874,516$               

          Structural Projects

               805 ‐ Central Tile Maintenance & Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        50,357$                ‐$                       50,357$                 

               807 ‐ Washington Square Bldg Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        23,500$                ‐$                       23,500$                 

               809 ‐ Washington Square Infrastructure Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               809E ‐ Washington Square Exterior Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        290$                      ‐$                       290$                       

               821 ‐ Oshtemo Infrastructure Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        24,200$                ‐$                       24,200$                 

               822 ‐ Eastwood Infrastructure Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               822R ‐ Eastwood Branch Roof Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        144,825$              140,000$              284,825$               

               823R ‐ Oshtemo Branch Roof Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       700,000$              700,000$               

               828 ‐ Eastwood Building Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        19,440$                ‐$                       19,440$                 

               828H ‐ Eastwood Furnace Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        5,902$                   140,000$              145,902$               

Kalamazoo Public Library
Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Month of October 2023

Page 1 of 3 Office of Finance and Budget



Monthly 

Activity

Monthly 

Encumbrances
Activity YTD

Carryover 

Balance

Preliminary 

Estimate 

Budget

Balance 

Remaining

3 ‐ Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Kalamazoo Public Library
Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Month of October 2023

          Total Structural Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        268,514$              980,000$              1,248,514$           

          Mechanical Projects

               825 ‐ Central Chiller / Cooling tower ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        175,000$              ‐$                       175,000$               

               825O ‐ Central ONEplace Cooling tower ‐$                      ‐$                         25,295$                 25,845$                ‐$                       550$                       

               826 ‐ Central Steam Boiler ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        971,778$              ‐$                       971,778$               

               841 ‐ Central Louvers on AHU‐2 ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        45,000$                ‐$                       45,000$                 

               887 ‐ Generator, Central, Eastwood & Powell ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        75,000$                ‐$                       75,000$                 

               895 ‐ Central Freight Elevator ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               895PE ‐ Central Passenger Elevator ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        52,000$                ‐$                       52,000$                 

          Total Mechanical Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         25,295$                 1,344,623$           ‐$                       1,319,328$           

          Control & Security Systems

               827 ‐ Security Systems 2,567$                  ‐$                         2,567$                   4,807$                   ‐$                       2,240$                   

               827A ‐ Library Access Controls Project 35,683$                (19,835)$                 35,683$                 61,615$                ‐$                       25,932$                 

               827D ‐ ADA Compliant Staff Doors ‐$                      ‐$                         887$                       19,000$                ‐$                       18,113$                 

          Total Control & Security Systems 38,250$                (19,835)$                 39,137$                 85,422$                ‐$                       46,285$                 

          Other Facilities Projects

               806 ‐ Central Restrooms ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        3,629$                   ‐$                       3,629$                   

               808 ‐ Dropbox Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        18,889$                ‐$                       18,889$                 

               811 ‐ Carpet Master Plan ‐ Central ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        256,923$              ‐$                       256,923$               

               811E ‐ Carpet Master Plan ‐ Eastwood ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        56,317$                ‐$                       56,317$                 

               811W ‐ Carpet Master Plan ‐ WSQ ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        54,270$                ‐$                       54,270$                 

               816a ‐ Library Space Study ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        82,500$                ‐$                       82,500$                 

               821C ‐ Oshtemo Courtyard Improvements ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        50,000$                ‐$                       50,000$                 

               821P ‐ Oshtemo Parking & Ramp Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        147,370$              ‐$                       147,370$               

               823 ‐ Oshtemo Building Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        98,109$                ‐$                       98,109$                 

               824 ‐ Eastwood Drop Ceiling ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               829 ‐ Central Building Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        22,577$                ‐$                       22,577$                 

               829L ‐ Central Exterior Lighting Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         7,800$                   8,500$                   ‐$                       700$                       

               829S ‐ Central Sewage Pump Replacement ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               892B ‐ Local History Digitization ‐ Bldg Alt ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               893 ‐  Vehicles ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               802 ‐ COVID‐Related Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               829V ‐ Van Duesen Renovations ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

          Total Other Facilities Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         7,800$                   799,084$              ‐$                       791,284$               

     Total Building Alterations 38,250$               (19,835)$                 72,232$                 2,822,159$          1,530,000$          4,279,927$           

     Computer & Technology

               830 ‐ Computer & Technology Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        141,483$              60,000$                201,483$               

          Total Computer & Tech. Reserve ‐$                      ‐$                         141,483$              60,000$                201,483$               

          Public Technology & Hardware

               831 ‐ Computer Equipment & Peripherals ‐$                      (2,617)$                   8,962$                   16,233$                40,000$                47,271$                 

               843 ‐ Branch digital signage ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        4,443$                   ‐$                       4,443$                   

               844 ‐ USB Charging Stations ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               857 ‐ Selfcheck Upgrade Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        4,746$                   ‐$                       4,746$                   

               862 ‐ AV Enhancements ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        13,096$                ‐$                       13,096$                 

               865 ‐ Tech Innovation Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        1,115$                   ‐$                       1,115$                   

               884 ‐ Digital Lab (The Hub) Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         2,597$                   6,859$                   ‐$                       4,262$                   

               892A ‐ Local History Digitization ‐ Automation ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        8,676$                   ‐$                       8,676$                   

          Total Public Technology & Hardware ‐$                      (2,617)$                   11,559$                 55,168$                40,000$                83,609$                 

          Portable Technology

               878 ‐ Portable Devices ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        11,209$                ‐$                       11,209$                 

          Total Portable Technology ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        11,209$                ‐$                       11,209$                 

          Other Tech/Computer Equipment  

Page 2 of 3 Office of Finance and Budget



Monthly 

Activity

Monthly 

Encumbrances
Activity YTD

Carryover 

Balance

Preliminary 

Estimate 

Budget

Balance 

Remaining

3 ‐ Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Kalamazoo Public Library
Capital Improvement Plan Fund

Month of October 2023

               854 ‐ Other Tech/Computer Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        6,043$                   ‐$                       6,043$                   

               855 ‐ Communications Systems ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        210$                      ‐$                       210$                       

               855PA ‐ KPL PA System Project ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        66,300$                ‐$                       66,300$                 

               856 ‐ IT Infrastructure Projects ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        1,784$                   ‐$                       1,784$                   

               879 ‐ Office scanners ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               898 ‐ Library of Things (Tech Related) ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

          Total Other Tech/Computer Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        74,337$                ‐$                       74,337$                 

          RFID/Circulation

               852 ‐ RFID/ILS Equipment ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        262$                      ‐$                       262$                       

          Total RFID/Circulation Tech. ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        262$                      ‐$                       262$                       

     Total Computer & Technology ‐$                      (2,617)$                   11,559$                 282,459$              100,000$              370,900$               

‐$                      

Total CIP Expenditures 38,250$               (22,452)$                 89,385$                 3,463,887$          1,680,000$          5,082,072$           

Draw on Specific CIP Reserve: Oshtemo Infrastructure Projects: (150,000)$            

Draw on Specific CIP Reserve: Eastwood Infrastructure Projects: (90,000)$              

Transfer to Specific CIP Reserve: Mobile LIbrary: 80,000$               

APPROVED BUDGETED CIP EXPENDITURES + TRANSFERS TO SPECIFIC CIP RESERVES: 1,520,000$         

          

          Transfers

               800 ‐CIP Transfers (from) Other Funds ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

               800 ‐CIP Transfers to Other Funds ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

     Total ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

Total Transfers ‐$                      ‐$                         ‐$                        ‐$                       ‐$                       ‐$                        

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (All Projects)   1,444,272$         

TOTAL NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ‐‐ All Projects   (38,250)$             

ENDING FUND BALANCE (All Projects)   1,406,022$         

Page 3 of 3 Office of Finance and Budget



Kalamazoo Public Library

Special Revenue Fund

Month of October 2023

Activity Encumbrances Activity YTD PEB Budget Left % Complete

Month of October

Revenue

          Local Support

               233 - Ready to Read - Gifts $20 $0 $482 $4,000 $3,518  12.1%

               235 - Ready to Read - Spelling Bee $3,500 $0 $4,000 $5,000 $1,000  80.0%

               301 - Gifts & Memorials - Materials $0 $0 $300 $1,000 $700  30.0%

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $0 $0 $0 $155,000 $155,000  0.0%

               308 - Library Gifts $100 $0 $110 $1,000 $890  11.0%

               311 - DEI Development $10,000 $0 $10,000 $0 ($10,000)  0.0%

               315C - AG Scholarship - KPL Funds $0 $0 $459 $0 ($459)  0.0%

               325 - Friends of KPL Grants $7,000 $0 $7,000 $0 ($7,000)  0.0%

               325LT - Departmental Activites $5,000 $0 $5,000 $0 ($5,000)  0.0%

               390 - Youth Services Gifts & Memorials $150 $0 $3,940 $0 ($3,940)  0.0%

               390WC - Youth Writing Contest $2,000 $0 $2,000 $0 ($2,000)  0.0%

               397BTJ - Booker T. Jones Event $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000 $0  100.0%

$27,770 $0 $38,291 $171,000 $132,709  22.4%          Total Local Support

          Other

               235 - Ready to Read - Spelling Bee $35 $0 $35 $0 ($35)  0.0%

               315 - Amanda Green Scholarship $0 $0 $0 $16,200 $16,200  0.0%

               397 - KCF- Local History Fd (Patton Trust) $0 $0 $0 $80,462 $80,462  0.0%

$35 $0 $35 $96,662 $96,627  0.0%          Total Other Revenue

$27,805 $0 $38,326 $267,662 $229,336  14.3%Total Revenue

Expenditures

     Materials

          Adult Books

               301 - Gifts & Memorials - Materials $0 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000  0.0%

$0 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000  0.0%          Total Adult Books

          Juvenile Books

               233 - Ready to Read - Gifts $320 $0 $5,078 $10,000 $4,922  50.8%

               301 - Gifts & Memorials - Materials $0 $0 $0 $500 $500  0.0%

$320 $0 $5,078 $10,500 $5,422  48.4%          Total Juvenile Books

$320 $0 $5,078 $11,500 $6,422  44.2%     Total

     Operating Expenses

          Misc. Operating Expenses

               235 - Ready to Read - Spelling Bee $0 $0 $0 $4,500 $4,500  0.0%

               305 - Law Library Gifts $0 $0 $0 $2,000 $2,000  0.0%

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $971 $0 $1,408 $0 ($1,408)  0.0%

               307 - ONEplace Nonprofit Services $0 $0 $0 $19,862 $19,862  0.0%

               308 - Library Gifts $0 $0 $520 $4,000 $3,480  13.0%

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 1 of 2



Kalamazoo Public Library

Special Revenue Fund

Month of October 2023

Activity Encumbrances Activity YTD PEB Budget Left % Complete

Month of October

               310 - KPL Antiracism Transformation Tea $90 $0 $90 $3,000 $2,910  3.0%

               315 - Amanda Green Scholarship $0 $0 $0 $12,893 $12,893  0.0%

               320 - Mobile Digital Access Project $37,320 $0 $37,320 $0 ($37,320)  0.0%

               325 - Friends of KPL Grants $0 $0 $1,642 $5,000 $3,358  32.8%

               397 - KCF- Local History Fd (Patton Trust) $0 $0 $0 $84,368 $84,368  0.0%

               397BTJ - Booker T. Jones Event $0 $0 $22,159 $33,800 $11,641  65.6%

$38,381 $0 $63,139 $169,423 $106,284  37.3%          Total Misc. Operating Expenses

$38,381 $0 $63,139 $169,423 $106,284  37.3%     Total

     Other Expenditures

          Programming

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $24,227 $0 $33,059 $125,000 $91,941  26.4%

$24,227 $0 $33,059 $125,000 $91,941  26.4%          Total Programming

          Travel & Conference

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $0 $0 $577 $0 ($577)  0.0%

$0 $0 $577 $0 ($577)  0.0%          Total Travel & Conference

$24,227 $0 $33,636 $125,000 $91,364  26.9%     Total

$62,929 $0 $101,853 $305,923 $204,070  33.3%Total

Transfers

     Transfers In

          Transfers from other funds

               397BTJ - Booker T. Jones Event $0 $0 $0 ($20,000) ($20,000)  0.0%

$0 $0 $0 ($20,000) ($20,000)  0.0%     Total Transfers In

     Transfers Out

          Transfers to other funds

               306 - ONEplace Stryker Johnston Grant $0 $0 $0 $104,054 $104,054  0.0%

               397 - KCF- Local History Fd (Patton Trust) $0 $0 $0 $68,930 $68,930  0.0%

$0 $0 $0 $172,984 $172,984  0.0%     Total

$0 $0 $0 $152,984 $152,984  0.0%Total

Office of Finance and BudgetPage 2 of 2



2 of 10

Statement Period

October 1-31, 2023KALAMAZOO PUB LIBRARY ENDWMNT

Schwab One® Account of

i

Asset Allocation
This Period Current Allocation

Cash and Cash Investments 432,473.00 7%

Fixed Income 507,468.10 9%

Equities 2,190,553.96 38%

Exchange Traded Funds 2,688,964.50 46%

Total $5,819,459.56 100%

i

Income Summary
This Period YTD

Federal Tax Status Tax-Exempt Taxable Tax-Exempt Taxable

Schwab One®
Interest

0.00 182.15 0.00 323.19

Cash Dividends 0.00 10,540.72 0.00 19,486.59

Total Income $0.00 $10,722.87 $0.00 $19,809.78

i

Margin Loan Information
Opening Margin
Loan Balance

Closing Margin
Loan Balance

Funds Available
to Withdraw *

Securities

$0.00 $0.00 $3,238,418.00 $6,476,836.00

Margin Loan Rates
Vary by Balance
11.75% - 13.57%
* Values include any cash plus the amount available using margin borrowing.
For more information about the margin feature, please visit schwab.com/margin.

abc

Positions - Summary
Beginning
Value as of +

Transfer of
Securities(In/Out) +

Dividends
Reinvested + Cash Activity +

Change in
Market Value =

Ending Value
as of 10/31 Cost Basis

Unrealized
Gain/(Loss)

$5,899,179.36 $0.00 $0.00 $3,059.49 ($82,779.29) $5,819,459.56 $4,845,676.25 $541,310.31

Values may not reflect all of your gains/losses; Schwab has provided accurate gain and loss information wherever possible for most investments. Cost basis may be incomplete or unavailable for some of your holdings
and may change or be adjusted in certain cases. Statement information should not be used for tax preparation, instead refer to official tax documents. For additional information refer to Terms and Conditions.

Cash and Cash Investments
Type Symbol Description Quantity Price($)

Beginning
Balance($)

Ending
Balance($)

Change in Period
Balance($)

Pending/Unsettled
Cash($)

Interest/
Yield Rate

Cash , 500,652.63 432,473.00 (68,179.63) 1,169.28

Total Cash and Cash Investments $500,652.63 $432,473.00 ($68,179.63)



VI.  A. 

 

 

 

MEMO 

 

TO: Library Trustees  FROM: Terry New, Interim 
Library Director 
 

RE: Acceptance of Audited 
Financial Statements 

 DATE: December 11, 2023 

 

 

 

Recommendations: 

I recommend board acceptance of the Financial Statements and auditor opinion for the year ending 

June 30, 2023 from Gabridge & Company. 

 

Executive Summary 

I recommend that the board accept the attached audited financial statements and report from Gabridge 

& Company for their financial statement audit for the year ended June 30, 2023.  The library received an 

unmodified “clean” opinion for the presentation of the financial statements.  The Finance and Budget 

committee has reviewed the audit and the auditor’s opinion and presents the report and financial 

statements for the fiscal year 2022-2023 for consideration by the full Library Board of Trustees.  

                



VI. B.  
 

 

 

 

MEMO 

 

TO: Library Trustees  FROM: Terry New 
Interim Library Director 
 

RE: Mid-Year Close Estimate 
Budget Revisions – General 
Operating Fund Only 

 DATE: December 11, 2023 

 

 

Recommendation: 

I recommend the board approve the attached Mid-Year Close Estimate Budget (“CEB”) for the Library’s General 

Operating Fund for FY 2023-2024. 

 

Executive Summary: 

The library’s beginning General Fund balance for FY 2023-2024 was revised to $12,872,346 to include the 

audited net change in fund balance from the prior fiscal year ($488,094).  This General Operating Fund Mid-Year 

Close Estimate Budget (the “CEB”) for FY 2023-2024 updates the Library’s Preliminary Estimate Budget (the “PEB”) 

to increase budgeted revenue by $85,072.  The increase is primarily attributable to higher interest income 

expected on short-term investments, increased local support for ONEplace operations, and revenue from the sale 

of Digital-access Library cards. 

 

General Operating Fund expenditure budgets have been reduced by $61,392 from the Library’s PEB.  

Expenditure adjustments include reductions in employee benefits in line with medical choices of eligible staff, in 

addition to updated position classifications and salaries of full-time staff.  We recommend net increases in budgets 

for Materials, Operating Expenses, Technical and Purchased Services, Board Expenses, and Programming were 

offset by slight net reductions in KPL’s budget for Salaries and Wages.  After all revisions, transfers, revenue, and 

expense adjustments, the library’s ending General Fund balance is expected to increase by $125,045 in the CEB, 

an improvement of $146,464 from that which was budgeted in the PEB. 

These budgets have been reviewed in detail by the Finance & Budget Committee and are presented for 

consideration by the full Library Board of Trustees. 

 

NOTE:  Close Estimate Budgets for the Capital Improvement Plan Fund and the Special Revenue Fund will be 

reviewed and presented to the board in January or February of 2024. 



FYE 6/30/23 

Audited 

Financials

Preliminary Close 

Estimate Budget 

("PEB")

Mid‐Yr Close 

Estimate Budget 

("CEB")

Variance to 

PEB

% of 

Total

(PYA) (A) (C) D = [C ‐ A]

Revenue
A      Property Tax, IFT and PILT Revenue 13,018,835$          13,859,479$          13,859,479$          ‐$   93%

A.1      State Grants and Reimbursements 284,793$               272,812$               248,812$               (24,000)$            2%

     Charges for Services 29,318$                 19,000$                 31,340$                 12,340$             0%

     District Court Penal Fines 136,232$               148,000$               136,232$               (11,768)$            1%

A.2      Other Revenue 535,077$               450,796$               559,296$               108,500$           4%

A.3 Sub Total: Revenue from Operations 14,004,255$         14,750,087$         14,835,159$         85,072$             100%

B Other Financing Sources ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  

C TOTAL REVENUE AND FINANCING SOURCES 14,004,255$         14,750,087$         14,835,159$         85,072$            

Expenditures
     Salaries 6,054,430$            6,467,300$            6,464,145$            (3,155)$             
     Benefits 2,647,476$            2,707,623$            2,618,825$            (88,798)$            63%

     Materials 1,252,351$            1,479,840$            1,484,390$            4,550$               10%

     Facilities 651,857$               717,390$               717,390$               ‐$   5%

     Operating Expenses 325,585$               376,005$               378,005$               2,000$               3%

     Technical Services 661,155$               852,357$               855,548$               3,191$               6%

     Purchased Services 776,765$               1,119,077$            1,129,577$            10,500$             8%

     Other Expenditures 438,252$               676,170$               686,490$               10,320$             5%

D Sub‐Total Operating Expenditures   12,807,871$         14,395,762$         14,334,370$         (61,392)$            100%

Compensation Reserves, Salaried & Hourly ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$  
D‐1 Total Operating Expenditures 12,807,871$         14,395,762$         14,334,370$         (61,392)$           

E 1,196,384$            354,325$               500,789$               146,464$          

F Operating Margin: 2.4% 3.4%

Transfers
     Transfers to / (from) Other Funds (140,438)$              (152,984)$              (152,984)$              ‐$  

G      Transfers to Capital Improvement Plan 848,728$               528,728$               528,728$               ‐$  

H TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS   13,516,161$         14,771,506$         14,710,114$         (61,392)$           

I 488,094$               (21,419)$                125,045$               ‐$                  

J BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 12,384,252$         12,127,001$         12,872,346$         ‐$                  

K NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) TO FUND BALANCE 488,094$               (21,419)$                125,045$               ‐$                  

L TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 12,872,346$         12,105,582$         12,997,391$         ‐$                  

Composition of Fund Balance

M Non‐spendable Prepaid Expenditures 363,581$               ‐$   ‐$  

N Restricted ONEplace Grants 27,690$                 69,490$                 27,690$                

O Assigned for Cash Flow ‐$   7,197,881$            7,167,185$           

Unassigned Fund Balance 12,481,075$          4,838,211$            5,802,515$           

P Total Ending Fund Balance 12,872,346$         12,105,582$         12,997,391$        

Kalamazoo Public Library's Property Tax Revenue for FY 2023‐2024 is based upon a maximum allowable 3.8999 mills levied 

during the 2023 tax year for operating purposes.  The 3.8999 millage rate results from the effect of the Headlee rollback 

provision of MCL 211.34d upon the maximum authorized millage rate of 4.0 mills.

NET OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Financing 

Sources Over Expenditures and Transfers

Kalamazoo Public Library
General Operating Fund

Mid‐Yr Close Estimate Budget: Summary

Fiscal Year ending 6/30/2024

As of 12/6/2023 Office of Finance and Budget



PEB FY to Date
Mid‐Yr CEB 

("CEB")

Variance to 

Prior Budget 

(PEB)

% 

Complete

W X Y Z = [ Y ‐ W ] [ X / Y ]
REVENUE

1 Property Taxes 13,740,379$     2,517$               13,740,379$     ‐$                   0.0%
2 Other Taxes 119,100$           16,886$             119,100$           ‐$                   14.2%
3 Fines and Fees 19,000$             7,545$               31,340$             12,340$             24.1%
4 District Court Penal Fines 148,000$           ‐$                   136,232$           (11,768)$           0.0%
5 Local Support 173,000$           189,000$           189,000$           16,000$             100.0%
6 Interest Income 150,000$           140,431$           242,500$           92,500$             57.9%
7 State Aid and Reimbursements 272,812$           2,740$               248,812$           (24,000)$           1.1%
8 Other 127,796$           21,384$             127,796$           ‐$                   16.7%
8.a Other Financing Sources ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                  

TOTAL REVENUE AND FINANCING SOURCES   14,750,087$     380,503$           14,835,159$     85,072$             2.6%

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and Wages

9 Administrator Salaries 846,645$           284,237$           918,568$           71,923$             30.9%
10 Librarian Salaries 1,784,897$       526,019$           1,774,897$       (10,000)$           29.6%
11 Supervisory Technical Salaries 1,052,715$       305,899$           1,019,466$       (33,249)$           30.0%
12 Library Assistant Salaries 1,691,601$       518,603$           1,659,772$       (31,829)$           31.2%
13 Interns 295,000$           71,000$             295,000$           ‐$                   24.1%
14 Library Aides 741,960$           199,946$           741,960$           ‐$                   26.9%
15 Substitutes 89,482$             33,395$             89,482$             ‐$                   37.3%
16 Vacancy Credit   (35,000)$           ‐$                   (35,000)$           ‐$                   0.0%

17 Total Salaries & Wages   6,467,300$       1,939,099$       6,464,145$       (3,155)$              30.0%

Benefits
18 Employee Insurance 1,068,015$       342,009$           1,016,439$       (51,576)$           33.6%
19 Retirement 1,043,630$       309,493$           1,003,143$       (40,487)$           30.9%
20 Employer FICA‐Medicare 493,934$           178,399$           493,693$           (241)$                 36.1%
21 Other Benefits: RPO, Parking, etc. 102,044$           23,470$             105,550$           3,506$               22.2%
22 Total Benefits   2,707,623$       853,371$           2,618,825$       (88,798)$           32.6%

22.a Compensation Reserves ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                  
22.b Total Salaries and Benefits 9,174,923$       2,792,470$       9,082,970$       (91,953)$          

Materials
23 Adult Books 596,550$           173,266$           571,300$           (25,250)$           30.3%
24 Children's Books 147,000$           51,111$             137,000$           (10,000)$           37.3%
25 Periodicals 52,860$             7,586$               47,660$             (5,200)$              15.9%
26 Audio‐Visual Material 432,000$           97,690$             477,000$           45,000$             20.5%
27 Digital Materials 216,430$           51,404$             216,430$           ‐$                   23.8%
27 Library of Things 35,000$             7,851$               35,000$             ‐$                   22.4%
28 Total Materials   1,479,840$       388,908$           1,484,390$       4,550$               26.2%

Facilities
29 Fuel 86,000$             7,824$               86,000$             ‐$                   9.1%
30 Electricity 191,390$           75,692$             191,390$           ‐$                   39.5%
31 Water 13,600$             7,781$               13,600$             ‐$                   57.2%
32 Custodial Supplies 90,000$             34,868$             90,000$             ‐$                   38.7%
33 Grounds Maintenance 54,500$             28,693$             54,500$             ‐$                   52.6%
34 Vehicle Maintenance 8,500$               1,658$               8,500$               ‐$                   19.5%
35 Building Repairs 139,700$           37,221$             139,700$           ‐$                   26.6%
36 Building Operations 133,700$           56,582$             133,700$           ‐$                   42.3%
37 Total Facilities   717,390$           250,319$           717,390$           ‐$                   34.9%

Operating Expenses
38 Supplies 143,150$           49,638$             143,150$           ‐$                   34.7%

FY 2023 ‐ 2024

Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund
Mid‐Year Close Estimate Budget: Detail

Fiscal Year ending 6/30/2024

As of 12/6/2023 Page 1 of 2 Office of Finance and Budget



PEB FY to Date
Mid‐Yr CEB 

("CEB")

Variance to 

Prior Budget 

(PEB)

% 

Complete

W X Y Z = [ Y ‐ W ] [ X / Y ]

FY 2023 ‐ 2024

Kalamazoo Public Library

General Operating Fund
Mid‐Year Close Estimate Budget: Detail

Fiscal Year ending 6/30/2024

39 Misc. Operating Expenses 103,355$           23,183$             103,355$           ‐$                   22.4%
40 Postage & Freight 36,500$             13,956$             36,500$             ‐$                   38.2%
41 Rent 46,000$             19,217$             48,000$             2,000$               40.0%
42 Processing Supplies 47,000$             3,497$               47,000$             ‐$                   7.4%
43 Total Operating Expenses   376,005$           109,491$           378,005$           2,000$               29.0%

Technical Services
44 F&E Repair & Maintenance 16,000$             ‐$                   16,000$             ‐$                   0.0%
45 Software & Licenses 189,065$           222,764$           189,065$           ‐$                   117.8%
46 Software as a Service 400,443$           48,455$             400,443$           ‐$                   12.1%
47 Telecommunications 155,040$           38,558$             155,040$           ‐$                   24.9%
48 Cataloging & Processing 91,809$             42,444$             95,000$             3,191$               44.7%
49 Total Technical Services   852,357$           352,221$           855,548$           3,191$               41.2%

Purchased Services
50 Security 446,052$           132,530$           446,052$           ‐$                   29.7%
51 Insurance 111,216$           11,942$             111,216$           ‐$                   10.7%
52 Legal Services 50,000$             3,550$               50,000$             ‐$                   7.1%
53 Printing Services 128,600$           48,301$             128,600$           ‐$                   37.6%
54 Advertising 40,000$             11,007$             40,000$             ‐$                   27.5%
55 Contracted Services 343,209$           96,825$             353,709$           10,500$             27.4%
56 Total Purchased Services   1,119,077$       304,155$           1,129,577$       10,500$             26.9%

Other Expenditures
57 Tax Charge Backs 50,000$             12,334$             50,000$             ‐$                   24.7%
58 Staff Development 68,260$             11,839$             68,260$             ‐$                   17.3%
59 Travel & Conference 122,410$           8,653$               122,410$           ‐$                   7.1%
60 Board Expenses 12,000$             75$                     14,520$             2,520$               0.5%
61 Programming 423,500$           151,408$           431,300$           7,800$               35.1%
62 Total Other Expenditures   676,170$           184,309$           686,490$           10,320$             26.8%

63 TOTAL EXPENDITURES   14,395,762$     4,381,873$       14,334,370$     (61,392)$           30.6%

64 NET OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)   354,325$           500,789$           146,464$          

Operating Margin: 3.4%
Transfers

65 Transfers to / (from) Other Funds (152,984)$         ‐$                   (152,984)$         ‐$                   0.0%
66 Transfers to Capital Improvement Plan 528,728$           ‐$                   528,728$           ‐$                   0.0%

67 TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS   14,771,506$     4,381,873$       14,710,114$     (61,392)$           29.8%

68 (21,419)$           125,045$           146,464$          

69 BEGINNING FUND BALANCE   12,127,001$     12,872,346$     745,345$          

70 NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) TO FUND BALANCE (21,419)$           125,045$           146,464$          

71 TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE   12,105,582$     12,997,391$     891,808$          

Composition of Fund Balance

72 Non‐spendable Prepaid Expenditures ‐$                   ‐$                   ‐$                  

73 Restricted ONEplace Grants 69,490$             27,690$             (41,800)$          

74 Assigned for Cash Flow 7,197,881$       7,167,185$       (30,696)$          

75 Unassigned Fund Balance 4,838,211$       5,802,515$       964,304$          

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 12,105,582$     12,997,391$     891,808$          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue and Other 

Sources Over Expenditures

As of 12/6/2023 Page 2 of 2 Office of Finance and Budget



VI. C. 

 

 

 

 

MEMO 

 

 

TO: Library Trustees  FROM: Terry New 
Interim Library Director 
 

RE: Non-Resident Library Card and 
Digital Card Fee for 2024 

 DATE: December 11, 2023 

 

Recommendation: 

 

I recommend the Board renew the non-resident Library card fee for 2024 at $250 per household and 

$125 per student non-resident.  I further recommend that the Board establish set the price of a digital 

access card offered to unserved residents of Texas Township (those residing within the Mattawan or 

Schoolcraft School Districts) at 50% of the non-resident fee, or $125 per household for the digital card 

during calendar year 2024. 

 

Executive Summary: 

 

Kalamazoo Public Library’s non-resident fee is based upon the average tax on a residential parcel within 

the library district as provided by the Kalamazoo County Equalization Department.  The fee is calculated 

by accumulating the sum of residential property taxable values divided by the total reported residential 

parcels among local school districts that are part of the KPL taxing district.  The resultant non-resident 

charge for 2024 is $252.63 per household. 

 

Total residential parcels in the library district increased by 32 parcels during 2023 and totaled 33,145 

(during 2022 the number of residential parcels increased by 29) while the taxable value of residential 

parcels rose by 8.1%.  This resulted in an average increase in district residential property taxable value of 

$4,799 per residential parcel.  Per past practice, Administration recommends that KPL round the fee 

down to the nearest $5 increment resulting in a new household non-resident library card fee of $250. 

 

Current Calculations for 2024: 

 

Unit No. of Parcels Residential 
Taxable Value 

Avg. Taxable 
Value/Parcel 

Library Tax $ Per 
Parcel 

Kalamazoo City 19,305 $1,055,630,691 $54,682 $213.25 

Kalamazoo Twsp 6,845 $356,676,590 $52,108 $203.21 

Oshtemo Twsp 6,332 $656,983,324 $103,756 $404.64 

Texas Twsp 663 $77,779,495 $117,314 $457.51 

Total Library 33,145 $2,147,070,100 $64,778 $252.63 



VI. C. 

 

 

 

Historic Calculations for 2023: 

 

Unit No. of Parcels Residential 
Taxable Value 

Avg. Taxable 
Value/Parcel 

Library Tax $ Per 
Parcel 

Kalamazoo City 19,299 $978,978,403 $50,727 $197.83 

Kalamazoo Twsp 6,855 $331,567,290 $48,369 $188.63 

Oshtemo Twsp 6,334 $605,913,810 $95,661 $373.07 

Texas Twsp 625 $69,621,288 $111,394 $434.43 

Total Library 33,113 $1,986,080,791 $59,979 $233.91 

 

 



VI.  D. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

MEMO 
 

TO:   Library Trustees      FROM:       Terry New 
                   Interim Library Director 

 
RE: Child Safety Policy     DATE:      December 11, 2023 
    
 
Recommendation 
I recommend the Board accept the revised Child Safety Policy. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Kalamazoo Public Library’s Child Safety Policy was originally adopted on January 26, 2004 and has been 
amended on two different occasions with the most recent revision to be approved by the Board on 
March 25, 2013.   
 
The current review and revision of this policy has been led by Sandra Farag, Head of Youth Services, with 
input from both Library administration and youth-serving staff and included a comprehensive review of 
similar policies in other Michigan libraries. The primary objectives of the revised policy are to address 
and articulate levels of supervision required of minor children utilizing library facilities and to articulate 
the Library’s responsibilities and processes regarding child safety within the library.  This revision has 
been reviewed by KPL’s legal counsel Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C.   
 
 

http://www.kpl.gov/


VI. D. 

 

Child Safety Policy (2023) 
 

The Library Is a Public Space 
 
Kalamazoo Public Library welcomes and encourages children and their parents, guardians, 
and caregivers to visit our library and enjoy the facilities, services, and events of the 
Kalamazoo Public Library.  
 
Library staff is here to serve you. However, staff cannot assume the responsibility of a child’s 
care and supervision. The behavior, safety, and welfare of children are the responsibility of 
the parents, guardians, or caregivers accompanying the child/children to the library or 
library-sponsored events. 
 
All patrons, including children, are expected to comply with the library’s Rules of 
Conduct.  
 
 

Age Requirements 
 
When considering the safety and welfare of their children, parents, guardians, and 
caregivers should be mindful that the downtown Central location is a multi-level facility. 
 

• Parents, guardians, or caregivers must be aged fourteen (14) and older and must be 
able to manage the child’s behavior, safety, and health. 
 

• Children aged eight (8) and younger must always have a parent, guardian, or caregiver 
in the immediate vicinity and in visual contact with the child.  

o Exceptions to this are for children ages six to eight (6-8) attending a library 
sponsored program on the premises—the parent, guardian, or caregiver is to 
remain in the library building and promptly rejoin the children at the end of the 
program.   
 

• Children aged nine (9) and older who can understand and follow the Rules of 
Conduct, and who can care for themselves may use the library unattended, subject 
to the Rules of Conduct and policies of the library. 
 

• Children of any age who, because of a disability, require supervision or personal care 
shall be attended to by a parent, guardian, or caregiver at all times.  
 

• Staff will not be responsible if unattended children of any age leave the library 
premises alone, or with other persons.  

 
 

https://www.kpl.gov/about/policies/rules-of-conduct-for-library-use/
https://www.kpl.gov/about/policies/rules-of-conduct-for-library-use/
https://www.kpl.gov/about/policies/rules-of-conduct-for-library-use/
https://www.kpl.gov/about/policies/rules-of-conduct-for-library-use/
https://www.kpl.gov/about/policies/rules-of-conduct-for-library-use/


VI. D. 

 

Violation of Rules of Conduct 
 

• Children and their parents, guardians, or caregivers who do not abide by the Rules of 
Conduct may be asked to leave the library.  

o For Children ages nine to eleven (9-11) who are unaccompanied and in 
violation of Rules of Conduct, the Library will undertake the following 
measures prior to asking a child to leave:   

▪ Attempt to manage the behavior using trauma-informed approaches.  
▪ Attempt to contact the child’s parent, guardian, or caregiver.  
▪ Contact Kalamazoo Department of Safety if the safety of the child is in 

doubt.  
o Further, staff will not be responsible for children nine (9) years or older who 

may be asked to leave the library if the child is in violation of library policy. 
• The library reserves the right to require direct adult supervision of any minor (under 

age 18) who has violated the Rules of Conduct. 
 

 
Emergencies 

 
Library staff are authorized to call Kalamazoo Department of Public Safety and stay with the 
child until police arrive when: 

• The safety of a child is in doubt. 
• The parent, guardian, or caregiver cannot be located. 
• The library is closing. 

 
 
 

https://www.kpl.gov/about/policies/rules-of-conduct-for-library-use/
https://www.kpl.gov/about/policies/rules-of-conduct-for-library-use/
https://www.kpl.gov/about/policies/rules-of-conduct-for-library-use/
https://www.kpl.gov/about/policies/rules-of-conduct-for-library-use/


 
 

VI. E.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMO 

 

 

TO: Library Trustees FROM: Terry New, Interim 
Library Director 

    
RE: Calendar of Meetings for 2024 DATE: December 11, 

2023 
 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

 

I recommend the Board accept the calendar for meetings for the 2024 calendar year. 

 

 

Executive Summary: 

 

A suggested calendar for Board meetings during the 2024 calendar year has been developed 

and is attached for your consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



VI. E.

kpl.gov 

Kalamazoo Public Library 

2024 Calendar for Meetings of the Library Board of Trustees 

Kalamazoo Public Library Board Meetings are usually scheduled for the fourth Monday of each month 
at 5:00 p.m. Meetings needing to be changed due to holidays or other circumstances will generally be 
held on the third Monday. 

Meetings will be held at Central Library at 315 South Rose Street, Kalamazoo MI 49007 unless otherwise 
noted. Meetings may occur at branch libraries and advanced notice will be given in those cases. Please 
refer to the “Notice of Meeting” distributed with meeting materials each month and posted at the 
Central Library and all branches to verify the date and location of each meeting. 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING DATES 

January 22, 2024 July 22, 2024 
February 26, 2024 August 26, 2024 
March 18, 2024* September 23, 2024 
April 22, 2024  October 28, 2024 
May 20, 2024*  November 25, 2024 
June 24, 2024  December 9, 2024 

*Held on March 18th because KPS Spring Break is during the week of the 25th
*Held on May 20th because Memorial Day is the following Monday and we’ll be closed



VIII.A. 
 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Director’s Report 

December 2023 

 

From the Interim Director: 

Core Values 

• We are committed to excellence in programs, services, and collections  

• We are community-focused  

• We are committed to and intentional about equity and anti-racism  

• We have safe, beautiful, and comfortable spaces  

• We are committed to continuous improvement and innovation  

• We have a passionate, engaged, knowledgeable, and creative staff  
 

Strategic Priorities 

• Strengthening Organizational Health 

• Advancing Equity and Inclusion: Library Services for All in our Diverse Community 

• Inspiring Literacy, Learning, and Engagement  
 

1. The Library received a generous donation of $10,00 from an anonymous source to be used for 

the support of the Library’s hotspot lending program. 

2. The parking lot project at the Oshtemo Branch is now complete, with a notable improvement 
being the upgrade of ADA spaces to ensure compliance with accessibility standards. 

3. Progressing from the design phase to the estimating phase, our partnership with Byce 
Engineering and Miller-Davis Construction is moving forward on the roof projects for the 
Oshtemo and Eastwood Branches. At Oshtemo, the plan includes replacing the roof and the 
rooftop HVAC unit with a more energy-efficient model, ensuring adherence to current Michigan 
Energy Codes. The Eastwood Branch's project involves installing a cold roof design to prevent ice 
dams during winter. 

4.  The anticipated delivery of the new Central Branch Cooling Tower is scheduled for the end of 
December. This pivotal component will enable us to complete the project by the close of this 
calendar year. 

5. Andrea Vernola presented a well-attended MLA session called “Everyday Evaluation: using 
evaluative thinking in your library” in October in Kalamazoo. The session focused on developing 
capacity for using evaluation tools like logic models, needs assessments, surveys, and focus 
groups to better understand your library’s impact in the community.  

6. Sandra Farag, Head of Youth Services, was nominated and elected to the Kalamazoo Literacy 

Council Board of Directors! This appointment will increase the impact that KPL has with its 



VIII.A. 
 

2 
 

community partners, as well as expanding the scope of work we do to promote literacy 

throughout the community.   

7. Kevin King has been nominated to run for the President of the Core Division of the American 
Library Association (ALA). Core is one of the largest divisions in ALA and is the national 
association that advances the profession of librarians and information providers in central roles 
of buildings & operations, leadership & management, metadata & collections, and technology. 

8. Kevin King is facilitating on a panel at the PLA Conference in Columbus, OH, April 3-5., titled, 
“Communicating During Controversy: How to Lead With What You Believe.” He is also 
presenting at the LLX Conference, January 19-22, in Baltimore on how to write conference 
proposals 
 

Strengthening Organization Health 

9. Internal Communication Audit completed. Recommendations have been made and are awaiting 

approval to be presented to staff. Phase II of updating MyKPL is currently in the recruiting staff 

participation stage. 

10. Natalie Isham attended the Young Adult Library Services Association Symposium in St. Louis, MO 

from November 10th through 12th. The Symposium featured sessions primarily on the right to 

read, discouraging censorship, teens' social emotional health and awareness, and developing a 

diverse and inclusive collection. Natalie also participated in a focus group for the YALSA board to 

discuss methods for increasing membership and attendance. 

11. Andrea Vernola recently attended the American Evaluation Association conference in 
Indianapolis, IN. She attended several sessions including “Qualitative Tools for Impact 
Measurement”, “From KPIs to Systems Change: reimagining organizational learning”, and 
“Needs Assessment Toolbox”. The conference provided learning on evaluation, data analysis, 
and impact measurement in all sectors, including nonprofits, libraries, and schools. 

12. A group of Oshtemo staff visited the Library of Michigan to attend a free training with other 
Michigan librarians called “Leap Into Science”. The training provided instruction and 
encouragement for teaching science concepts to preschoolers, school-age kids, and families in 
informal settings like public libraries and museums. The staff in attendance received many good 
ideas for programs, a packet of downloadable curriculum resources, and time to practice 
instruction methods. Staff are grateful to the Library of Michigan for providing excellent training 
opportunities to the Michigan library community. 

13. The Teen Department began October with a team building exercise by cleaning and 
organizing the Teen Studio. Four teen-staff members and several from YS at large visited the 
studio to help label and sort. All items were either repurposed to other departments, or 
recycled, if they weren't kept. Teen provided snacks and coffee as incentive for this large, 
tedious project, and it was good to have staff build relationships positively again.  

 

Advancing Equity and Inclusion:  Library Services for All in Our Diverse Community 

14. Members of the Board of Trustees, Terry New, Sandra Farag and Jermaine Jackson attended a 
special event at Western Michigan University commemorating the remarkable legacy of Albert 
White, the trailblazing African American builder credited with the construction of Western 
Michigan University’s first building, today known as Heritage Hall.  This commemoration was 
based on the research of Dr. Karika Parker.  During her presentation, Dr. Parker acknowledged 



VIII.A. 
 

3 
 

Local History staff members Ryan Gage and Alex Merrill for their assistance in her research.  KPL 
will be working with Dr. Parker in the preservation and display of photos provided by the White 
family. 

15. LIS Intern Sarah Van Eck coordinated a program for the Kalamazoo community’s Deaf Night Out 
group. Along with two ASL interpreters, Sarah, Ben Brown, and other Oshtemo staff provided a 
fun tie-dye and snack program for over 30 members of the DNO community. The organizer 
shared feedback with KPL noting how fun the event was and several pictures of the finished 
shirts on the group’s social media pages. They would love to make this an annual event at KPL 

 

Inspiring Literacy, Learning and Engagement 

16. Fifteen nonprofit and foundation leaders recently completed the ONEPlace 2023 Emerging 

Leaders Academy (ELA), a 6-month intensive leadership development program including our 

own Bionca Stewart. 

Grounded in ONEplace’s vision to cultivate reflective, empowered leaders, the curriculum 

focused on personal growth, organizational change, and collective action. Participants now join 

over 100 ELA alumni anchoring a thriving, equity-driven nonprofit sector across Kalamazoo. 

17. Programs continue to draw crowds in the children’s room. Our regular story times and music 
classes have seen steady attendance and engagement. Laura also had multiple special programs 
including cupcake decorating, a Narwhal and Jelly party (popular graphic novel series), Preschool 
explorers STEAM program, and creation labs (the favorite project this month was sock owls).  

18. Amanda Stover met with Sherrie from the Kalamazoo Covenant Academy on October 12th to 
discuss KPL partnering with KCA on a few book bins for the students who are parents. Bins 
would contain books for young children and a small toy.  

19. On the spookiest of days, Oct. 31st, Amanda (a.k.a. Princess Peach) covered Move and Groove 
for Laura B. We have been having a consistently large turnout for this program, and this day was 
no different. Caregivers engage so much with their children, and it is wonderful to see everyone 
enjoying themselves.  

20.  The KSO came for OSH's story time on October 26. They performed Hello, Star for all the story 
time regulars and folks that came specifically for the performance. 

21. Abbey, Andrea, Jill, and other KPL staff attended the Denooyer Trunk or Treat Event. At least 
1500 kids came through trick or treating. Everyone dressed up, and Abbey's car got decorated as 
a purple monster that spit out Nerds Candy. 

22. Kiersten had their Bujo and Chill event on October 28 for teens and adults. The theme for the 
day was mood trackers. 

23. On October 30, Abbey hosted a Stranger Things Escape Room for teens. The kids came and 
solved the room in 35 minutes. 

24. Abbey went to the JABS (Justice Against Bullying in Schools) Retreat on October 14 with the 
Mobile Library. Each kid chose a book to keep from the Mobile Library, and Abbey and Derek 
looked at library accounts and made new cards if kids needed them. 

25. Kiersten had a Squeegee Painting program for kids on October 17 that was well attended. 
26. Abbey had a Spooky Season Crafternoon on October 23. Approximately 40 people showed up 

and made pumpkin gut slime, smokey witch cauldrons, painted mini coffins, and colored 
Halloween coloring sheets. 



VIII.A. 
 

4 
 

27. Kiersten continues to go to Kalamazoo Central for their after-school book club. This year, the 
club has decided to read all Banned Books, and they are currently finishing up The Perks of Being 
a Wallflower.  

28. October saw two Read to Zoey events at OSH. Zoey is one of the therapy dogs that comes in for 
kids to read aloud to.  Participants have the opportunity to read to Zoey, spend some time with 
her, then take home a free book. 

29. Laura and Sarah N. hosted the Rhythm Readers program at Central. This program is for early 
readers and their caregivers and uses music to help struggling readers improve their literacy 
skills. 

30. Brianna hosted Anime in the Afternoon at Central every Wednesday in October; it continues to 
be a well-attended program. We've recently started the ever-so-popular anime, Demon Slayer, 
which follows Tanjiro and his sister Nezuko who learn of the existence of demons, and the 
secret Demon Slayer Corps. 

31. Brianna, with the help of with the help of Sandra Farag, Kyle VanKrimpen, and Lauren Yowell, 
organized and led another Milwood Magnet Middle School 6th grade visit on 10/3. Students 
were provided with information about Teen services, given a tour of CEN, and were able to take 
home a free book, and some KPL Teen-specific swag. 

32. October 6th was the first High Tea in Wonderland, a program idea from the Teen LA3, Lauren 
Yowell. Eighteen teens and 6 adults showed up to the program, which featured a catered high 
tea meal, themed set pieces, costumed staff, and a presentation on the history of high tea by 
Lauren. The feedback was so successful that plans for a "Backwards Day" in June 2024 on 6/10 
have already been made. 

33. Geek Fest 2023 returned to its second in-person event since the pandemic to resounding 
success. 1286 patrons from the Kalamazoo area, as well as three hundred from surrounding 
states, visited the Expo Center to participate in this free comic con hosted by KPL, Portage 
District Library, Paw Paw District Library, Vicksburg District Library, and guest institutions, the 
Kalamazoo Valley Museum and the Black Arts and Cultural Center. This is 500+ more than the 
attendance last year! Guests were given a chance to receive a personalized book from Mark 
Oshiro, and visit DM Scotty, a YouTube content creator featuring TTRPGs such as Dungeons & 
Dragons with a following of over 500k. Geek Fest featured a professional and amateur level 
cosplay contest, breakout sessions, local artists and fandom vendors, a Smash Bros tournament 
with fabulous prizes, and so much more. 

34. KPL was invited by MiCareer Quest of SW Michigan to attend their career fair for 8th graders for 
a second year in a row, on October 24th and 25th. KPL ran a booth that featured the Short Story 
Cube, showing over 1,700 8th graders from all over Michigan the connection between AI, 
literacy, and the future of technology at libraries. Natalie, Milan, Sandra F, and Brianna visited 
with kids and faculty, networked with the other local vendors and institutions, and shared KPL 
branded Croc charms with the masses. 

35. The Second Annual Haunted House, featuring Dustin Pari of Ghost Hunters International, was 
held on October 26th. This was a major project which employed the work of several 
departments. Turnout was successful at over 60 patrons with families and single adults both in 
attendance. 

36. The Teen Department hosted the Merze Tate Explorers for their annual meeting on October 
28th in the Teen Studio at Central. The local LLC, founded by powerhouse for good, Sonya 
Hollins, met to build leadership skills and build book bags for kids in need.  

37. On November 16th, Natalie Isham co-hosted Holiday Prep Yoga at the Move with Joy studios on 
Portage Street in the Edison neighborhood. This free, family friendly yoga session was instructed 
by owner Joy Morris, and hosted 18 total guests of all ages. 



VIII.A. 
 

5 
 

38. On November 16th, Natalie Isham co-hosted Holiday Prep Yoga at the Move with Joy studios on 
Portage Street in the Edison neighborhood. This free, family friendly yoga session was instructed 
by owner Joy Morris, and hosted 18 total guests of all ages. 

39. We had two fantastic days of authors in Kalamazoo as part of the 46th annual Youth Literature 

Seminar. Raul the Third visited El Sol 1st graders and Edison's after school Art Club with 

Kalamazoo Communities in Schools.  Kelly Starling Lyons met with 320 students at Lincoln. While 

Ebony LaDelle visited Loy Norrix and Kalamazoo Central.  All students that attended received a 

book to keep.  The event concluded with a five session on Friday that included the visiting 

authors and local guests Casey Coker and Jennifer Clark.  Hundreds of people participated in this 

signature program of KPL's.  

40. On Friday, December 1, Youth Services staff had the pleasure of spending the day with author 

Gary D. Schmidt. Gary shared stories with 8th graders at Linden Grove and with the public event 

at Central Library. This visit was made possible through the planning of the Youth Literature 

Seminar and the reimagining of this program to a possible series for the future.  

41. The Chocolate Olympics at Central brought in some new kids and families who had a great time 
stacking Oreos, playing chocolate Pictionary and chocolate shuffleboard, sorting M&Ms, and 
mastering a Whopper relay.   

42. Creation Lab continues to draw a consistent group. The crafts are fun, but the community 
building is even better. Kids make friends, caregivers exchange numbers, and connections are 
formed.   

43. Laura Bultman put together a program to celebrate the newest release in the Ada Twist Series, 
Lila Greer Teacher of the Year, which was well received. Families who love the books came and 
participated in a variety of STEM and craft activities based on the popular series.   

44. On November 6th and 20th, Teen staff visited Maple Street Magnet School for the Arts all day in 
their library at the request of their librarian, Jill Franz, to register 8th graders for Hoopla. 192 
students were registered, and their library accounts were verified and updated for future use.  

45. Sandra Farag and Kevin King met with Zadie Jackson from the Friends of KPL to discuss the 

possibility of conducting a Writing Contest for youth. We are all very excited but realize that 

there needs to be a lot of more planning upfront before we can move forward. We are looking 

to launch it in the next school year.  

46. KPL has once again started to participate in the downtown Art Hop program. Many thanks to 
Karen Trout for arranging both the November and December events. The program includes a 
“Tiny Reference Desk Concert,” featuring local musicians. Both Art Hops were attended by over 
60 people. The next one will be in March 2024. 

47. On December 1, the husband-and-wife duo, The War and Treaty, made a special visit to the 
Powell Branch to speak to the youth at the Boys and Girls Club program. Michael and Tanya 
Trotter are from Albion, Michigan, and this year became the first black duo to be nominated for 
Country Music Award for Duo of the year.  

48. Circulation in Hoopla and Libby continue to grow as more of our users discover or continue to 

use the digital platform collections we provide. Hoopla had an unexpected dip in use during the 

Thanksgiving holiday weekend, but quickly bounced back to have the highest circulation month 

since we went live with the platform in 2011. 11,548 hoopla circulations in November 

represents a new high point for hoopla circulation, but still has a way to go to catch our Libby 

use which saw 16,389 circulations during the same time. Our newest digital platform, Kanopy, is 

steadily growing an audience with just under 1000 plays per month.  



VIII.A. 
 

6 
 

49. With the year coming to a close, all KPL staff have been encouraged to create Best of 2023 lists 

highlighting the titles in our collections that they enjoyed during the past year. This annual 

collecting of our staff’s best of the year lists is a great tradition that not only highlights the 

strength of our collections, but also puts a focus on the uniquely individual tastes of our 

uniquely individual staff members. Watch for these lists to appear on the KPL website during 

December.  

50. A new Kalamazoo History article detailing the business success and lifelong friendship between 

Fred Bush & Thomas Paterson is posted in the Local History section of the KPL website. This 

dynamic duo was responsible for many iconic buildings constructed in Kalamazoo during the late 

1800s and their building company helped drive the successful growth of the city into a regional 

industrial powerhouse. 

51. Selectors are watching to see if the announcement that streaming juggernaut Spotify will begin 

offering audiobooks to its premium users will have an impact on KPL’s circulation of audio 

books. Audiobooks continue to be the highest circulating format in hoopla and strong circulation 

on the Libby platform has meant that digital audiobook circulation surpassed our physical 

audiobook circulation many years ago.  

 
KPL in the News 

Dec 1: https://nowkalamazoo.org/event/meet-the-author-gary-schmidt/ 

Nov 14: https://www.wmuk.org/wmuk-culture/2023-11-14/great-grownup-spelling-bee-helps-put-23-

000-books-in-childrens-hands  

Nov 15: https://wwmt.com/news/local/kalamazoo-great-grown-up-spelling-bee-public-library-ready-

read-program-children-books-kindergarten-fundraiser-thousands-dollars-community-education-west-

michigan  

Nov 27: https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2023/11/kalamazoo-public-library-to-reopen-search-

for-new-director.html 

Nov 27: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WgTSJdfP-f4  

Nov 28: https://wkzo.com/2023/11/28/kalamazoo-public-library-holding-public-meetings-on-search-for-

new-director/ 

Nov 28: https://wincountry.com/2023/11/28/kalamazoo-public-library-holding-public-meetings-on-

search-for-new-director/ 

Nov 28: https://nowkalamazoo.org/event/books-that-go-bump-in-the-night-2/ 

 

 

 

https://nowkalamazoo.org/event/meet-the-author-gary-schmidt/
https://www.wmuk.org/wmuk-culture/2023-11-14/great-grownup-spelling-bee-helps-put-23-000-books-in-childrens-hands
https://www.wmuk.org/wmuk-culture/2023-11-14/great-grownup-spelling-bee-helps-put-23-000-books-in-childrens-hands
https://wwmt.com/news/local/kalamazoo-great-grown-up-spelling-bee-public-library-ready-read-program-children-books-kindergarten-fundraiser-thousands-dollars-community-education-west-michigan
https://wwmt.com/news/local/kalamazoo-great-grown-up-spelling-bee-public-library-ready-read-program-children-books-kindergarten-fundraiser-thousands-dollars-community-education-west-michigan
https://wwmt.com/news/local/kalamazoo-great-grown-up-spelling-bee-public-library-ready-read-program-children-books-kindergarten-fundraiser-thousands-dollars-community-education-west-michigan
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2023/11/kalamazoo-public-library-to-reopen-search-for-new-director.html
https://www.mlive.com/news/kalamazoo/2023/11/kalamazoo-public-library-to-reopen-search-for-new-director.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WgTSJdfP-f4
https://wkzo.com/2023/11/28/kalamazoo-public-library-holding-public-meetings-on-search-for-new-director/
https://wkzo.com/2023/11/28/kalamazoo-public-library-holding-public-meetings-on-search-for-new-director/
https://wincountry.com/2023/11/28/kalamazoo-public-library-holding-public-meetings-on-search-for-new-director/
https://wincountry.com/2023/11/28/kalamazoo-public-library-holding-public-meetings-on-search-for-new-director/
https://nowkalamazoo.org/event/books-that-go-bump-in-the-night-2/

	Binder1.pdf
	Board  Agenda 12.11.23
	Board Minutes 10.16.23
	Board Minutes 10.23.23
	Board Minutes 10.30.23
	Board Minutes 11.7.23
	Board Minutes 11.13.23
	Board Minutes 11.20.23
	Board Minutes 11.30.23
	Financial Report Cover page December
	KPL Oct 2023 Financials

	Binder2.pdf
	Cover Page Audited Financial Statements 2023
	Mid Yr CEB Recommendation
	Gen Ops FY 23-24 CEB_all
	2024 Non-resident Fee Recommendation_draft
	Cover - Recommendation Child Safety  Policy
	FINAL Child Safety Policy 12.04.2023
	Cover Page Board Meeting Calendar 2024
	Board Meetings Calendar 2024
	Director Report December 2023




